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I. STATEMENT

1. This proceeding concerns Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (CPAN) No.97190 107235 issued by Staff of the Public Utilities Commission (Staff) onDecember 29, 2010 August 16, 2013 against Valierie Main, doing business as, Knight's Eye Recovery SolutionsTeasers Limousine LLC, doing business as On Demand Transportation and/or Limousines Etc. (Respondent). The CPAN alleges four violations of Rule 6102(a)(I), of the Rules Regulating Transportation by Motor Vehicle, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-6 and/or 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) § 395.1(e)(1)(B)(v), one violation of Rule 6103(d)(II)(C), 4 CCR 723-6; one violation of Rule 6102(a)(I), 4 CCR 723-6, and/or 49 CFR § 395.35.  The total amount of the CPAN for these violations is $4,400.00, including an additional 10 percent surcharge.  If the CPAN was paid within ten days, the total amount due was reduced to $2,200.00.

2. On August 26, 2013, the Respondent admitted liability and paid the reduced amount
 for five of the violations.  The Respondent requested a hearing on the alleged violation of  Rule 6102(a)(I),  4 CCR 723-6, and/or 49 CFR § 395.35.  The total amount of the penalty for this violation is $1,375.00.

3. On August 27, 2013, the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (Commission), set an evidentiary hearing on the contested violation for October 7, 2013.

4. During the Commission’s weekly meeting held 
September 4, 2013, the matter was referred to an administrative law judge (ALJ) for disposition.
5. By Interim Decision No. R13-1134-I, issued September 13, 2013, the evidentiary hearing was rescheduled for October 28, 2013.
6. On October 3, 2013, the parties filed their Stipulation and Settlement Agreement and Joint Motion to Approve Stipulation and Settlement Agreement and to Waive Response Time.  

7. According to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, Staff and Respondent agree to the following:  

1.
Respondent admits liability to all the violations in the CPAN.

2.
Respondent agrees to cease and desist from the actions that led to the violations set forth on the CPAN.

3.
Staff agrees to reduce the amount of the civil penalty from $1,375.00 to $750.00

8. The $750.00 settlement amount includes a 10 percent surcharge pursuant to 
§ 24-34-108, C.R.S.

9. Respondent agrees to pay the reduced penalty of $750.00 in one payment within ten days after this Agreement becomes final. 

10. For purposes of this Agreement, a final Commission decision shall mean the date when the Recommended Decision of the ALJ approving or modifying this Agreement becomes a decision of the Commission.

11. Respondent agrees that the failure to timely pay the settlement amount as provided herein will result in Respondent being liable for the full civil penalty
 less payments made without any further hearing or administrative or adjudicatory process.

12. Respondent agrees and stipulates the failure to complete its payment obligations as set forth in the Agreement shall also be deemed a waiver by Respondent of any and all rights to file exceptions and/or any other form of appeal.

13. The parties additionally agree that the Settlement Agreement has been reached to avoid the costly expense of litigation and that the Settlement Agreement promotes administrative efficiency by avoiding the time and expense that would be required to hear this matter.  

14. Finally the parties considered that the following mitigating factors:

i.
Respondent admits to the maximum level of culpability for all the violations set forth in the CPAN;

ii.
Respondent asserts that it is determined to be in compliance with all relevant Commission rules;

iii.
Respondent paid for five of the six violations on the CPAN within ten days of the issuance of the CPAN and has admitted liability for the sixth violation;

iv.
Respondent terminated the employee named in violations 2 and 3;

v.
Respondent has resolved issues that were documented in a Safety and Compliance review which lead to the issuance of the CPAN in this proceeding;  

vi.
Respondent fully cooperated with Staff in resolving this matter without the need for a litigated evidentiary proceeding;

vii.
Assessing the Respondent a civil penalty of $750.00 under the terms herein is sufficient to motivate Respondent to remain compliant with the Public Utilities Laws and Commission Rules on a going forward basis

II. FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

15. The undersigned ALJ finds good cause to grant the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement. It is found that the civil penalty of $750.00 is sufficient to motivate the Respondent to avoid any further violations of Commission regulations.

16. The ALJ finds it is in the public interest to conserve valuable resources by adopting the terms of the Settlement Agreement and avoiding a hearing in this matter. 

17. Therefore pursuant to the terms of the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement entered into between Respondent and Staff, Respondent is assessed a civil penalty of $750.00 payable according to the terms of the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement as delineated above. Failure to abide by the Agreement will result in reinstatement of the full civil penalty amount of $1,375.00 less any amounts already paid, due immediately.

18. The evidentiary hearing scheduled for October 28, 2013 will be vacated.

19. Response time to the Joint Motion to Approve Stipulation and Settlement Agreement will be waived.

20. In accordance with § 40-6-109, C.R.S., it is recommended that the Commission enter the following order.

III. order

A. The Commission Orders That:

1. The Motion to Approve Stipulation and Settlement Agreement is granted.

2. The Stipulation and Settlement Agreement entered into between Transportation Staff of the Commission and Teasers Limousine LLC, doing business as On Demand Transportation and/or Limousines Etc., is approved. A copy of the Agreement, attached hereto as Appendix A, is incorporated herein by reference.  Parties shall comply with the terms of the Agreement.

3. Teasers Limousine LLC, doing business as On Demand Transportation and/or Limousines Etc., is assessed a penalty of $1,375.00 for one violation of Rule 6102(a)(I) of the Rules Regulating Transportation by Motor Vehicle, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations, 723-1, and/or 49 Code of Federal Regulations § 395.35.  However, $625.00 of the civil penalty assessed, including the corresponding 10 percent surcharge is suspended on the conditions set forth in Ordering Paragraph Nos. 4 and 5

4. Respondent shall pay a total of $750.00.  The payment shall be made no later than ten days following the Commission’s final decision in this proceeding.

5. In the event that Teasers Limousine LLC, doing business as On Demand Transportation and/or Limousines Etc., should default on the terms of the Settlement Agreement as described above, the full amount of the civil penalty assessment of $1,375.00 shall become immediately due and payable, less any amounts paid pursuant to the terms of the Stipulation and Settlement Agreement.

6. The evidentiary hearing scheduled for October 28, 2013 is vacated

7. The Request for Waiver of Response Time is granted.

8. Response time to the Joint Motion to Approve Stipulation and Settlement Agreement is waived.

9. Proceeding No. 13G-0910EC is closed.

10. The Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.

11. As provided by § 40-6-106, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.

 
a)
If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the recommended decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.

 
b)
If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse a basic finding of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge; and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.

12. If exceptions to this Recommended Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.
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ATTEST: A TRUE COPY
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Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO


ROBERT I. GARVEY
________________________________
                     Administrative Law Judge




� The reduced amount for violations 1 through 5 was $825.00.


� Civil penalty $682.00; surcharge $68.00.


� The ALJ finds the full civil penalty amount to be $1,375.00 for the violation of Rule 6102(a)(I)  4 CCR 723-6, and 49 CFR § 395.35.  
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